

Committee on Streets and Services
October 3, 2017

Page 1

COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PHILADELPHIA
COMMITTEE ON STREETS AND SERVICES

Room 400, City Hall
Philadelphia, Pennsylvania
Tuesday, October 3, 2017
3:30 p.m.

PRESENT:

COUNCILMAN MARK SQUILLA, CHAIR
COUNCILWOMAN CINDY BASS
COUNCILMAN DEREK S. GREEN
COUNCILMAN WILLIAM K. GREENLEE
COUNCILMAN DAVID OH

BILLS 161105, 170596, 170624, 170715, 170718,
170720, 170722, 170802, and 170804

- - -

Committee on Streets and Services
October 3, 2017

Page 2

1 10/3/17 - STREETS - BILL 161105, ETC.

2 COUNCILMAN SQUILLA: Good
3 afternoon. Sorry for the delay. We'd
4 like to welcome everybody and call our
5 hearing to order for Streets and
6 Services.

7 I'd like to say to start, we
8 have a quorum. To my left, Councilman
9 Greenlee, Councilman Green, and to my
10 right, Councilwoman Bass.

11 Mr. McMonagle, would you like
12 to read the title -- oh, before we start,
13 for the record, I'd like to say Bill No.
14 170624 and 170804 are on hold by the call
15 of the sponsors.

16 Mr. McMonagle, please read the
17 title of the first bill.

18 THE CLERK: Bill No. 170718, an
19 ordinance amending Chapter 12-3000 of The
20 Philadelphia Code, entitled "Use Of An
21 Automated Red Light Enforcement System To
22 Prevent Red Light Violations," by
23 authorizing the installation of red light
24 enforcement systems at the intersection
25 of Rising Sun Avenue and Levick Street,

1 10/3/17 - STREETS - BILL 161105, ETC.
2 all under certain terms and conditions.
3 (Witnesses approached witness
4 table.)

5 COUNCILMAN SQUILLA: Thank you.
6 Saint, would you like to start
7 with your testimony.

8 MR. TORRENCE: Good afternoon.
9 Obviously I'm not Kasim Ali.

10 Good afternoon, Mr. Chairman,
11 members of the Committee. Thank you for
12 the opportunity to appear before you
13 today. My name is St. Martin Torrence.
14 I'm the Director of Legislative Affairs
15 for the Department of Streets. I'm here
16 to offer testimony on Bill No. 170718.

17 This bill authorizes the
18 installation of a red light enforcement
19 system at the intersection of Rising Sun
20 Avenue and Levick Street. The Department
21 supports this bill in the interest of
22 traffic safety and the Mayor's Vision
23 Zero initiative. These devices have been
24 shown to lower red light running crashes
25 at other City locations where such

1 10/3/17 - STREETS - BILL 161105, ETC.
2 devices have been installed.

3 Thank you for the opportunity
4 to appear before you today. That
5 concludes my testimony.

6 COUNCILMAN SQUILLA: Thank you.

7 Before we have questions,
8 Ms. Brown, would you like to state your
9 name for the record and then start with
10 your testimony. Just speak into the
11 microphone closer. Thank you.

12 MS. BROWN: My name is Lauren
13 Marie Brown. I am the daughter of Louis
14 A. Brown, Jr., M.D., who has practiced
15 dermatology in the Lawndale neighborhood
16 of 6326 Rising Sun Avenue in the
17 Northeast section of Philadelphia for
18 over 30 years. Due to a scheduling
19 conflict beyond his control, my father
20 has asked me to testify on his behalf in
21 support of Bill No. 170718 introduced by
22 Councilwoman Cherelle Parker on September
23 14th, 2017 regarding the placement of a
24 red light camera at the intersection of
25 Rising Sun Avenue and Levick Street.

1 10/3/17 - STREETS - BILL 161105, ETC.

2 I will now read his statement.

3 COUNCILMAN SQUILLA: Please
4 proceed.

5 MS. BROWN: Thank you,
6 Philadelphia City Council President
7 Darrell Clarke, for allowing my daughter,
8 Lauren Marie Brown, to read into the
9 record my testimony in support of Bill
10 170718 as introduced by our dedicated and
11 tireless Ninth District Councilwoman,
12 Cherelle Parker, with the assistance of
13 her kind and able staff, including Rachel
14 Meadows and Kyasha Tyson.

15 My support for this red light
16 camera installation at the intersection
17 of Rising Sun Avenue and Levick Street is
18 multifaceted. I have personally
19 experienced two terrifying near misses
20 while crossing Rising Sun Avenue with the
21 light at this intersection. In both
22 cases, the motorist making left turns off
23 of eastbound Levick Street traffic
24 turning onto Rising Sun Avenue heading
25 north showed no regard for my presence or

1 10/3/17 - STREETS - BILL 161105, ETC.
2 physical safety and, without breaking
3 speed, sped off north onto Rising Sun
4 Avenue. After the second similar
5 encounter, I ceased to cross at this
6 intersection for a three-year period out
7 of fear of a similar incident with a
8 worse outcome of grievous bodily harm.

9 When discussing my near miss
10 experiences with the 45 business owners
11 bracketing this Rising Sun Avenue and
12 Levick Street intersection, I found that
13 I was not alone in experiencing these
14 encounters, and in fact they are the norm
15 rather than the exception. One harrowing
16 accident related to me by the owner of
17 the Alternative Incorporated Day Care
18 Center involved the mother of a child.
19 While driving across Levick Street in
20 August, a speeding driver hit her car,
21 spinning it around, and the callous
22 perpetrator drove off without stopping.
23 As of today's testimony, the mother is
24 still suffering from the consequences of
25 that accident.

1 10/3/17 - STREETS - BILL 161105, ETC.

2 Support of this red light
3 camera is almost unanimous among the
4 business owners in the vicinity of this
5 intersection. In fact, I have submitted
6 a petition in which a remarkable nine out
7 of ten business owners bracketing the
8 Rising Sun Avenue and Levick Street
9 intersection have enthusiastically signed
10 on in support of this measure. The over
11 45 signatories have included
12 professionals such as myself as well as
13 major institutions such as The
14 Philadelphia Protestant Home, Bank of
15 America, Kindred Hospital, a Temple
16 University Hospital neighborhood clinic,
17 and restaurant, real estate, salon, and
18 technology business owners. In addition,
19 a resident, Pat Chicheara, on her own
20 time, managed to get 45 nearby residents
21 and pedestrians to enthusiastically sign
22 the petition in just two days.

23 The problem lays in the nature
24 of these two unique thoroughfares.
25 Levick Street is a major east-west

1 10/3/17 - STREETS - BILL 161105, ETC.
2 arterial connector road between New
3 Jersey and Montgomery County as it
4 traverses the Lower Northeast from the
5 Tacony-Palmyra Bridge to Cheltenham in
6 Montgomery County. During rush hours in
7 the mornings, afternoons, and evenings
8 and on holiday weekends, traffic is
9 heavy, and many motorists show little
10 regard for the local neighborhood
11 pedestrians crossing at this
12 intersection, as these motorists try to
13 beat the light to get to their distant
14 destinations.

15 The Rising Sun Avenue traffic
16 flow problem can be problematic as well,
17 but for a different reason. This
18 thoroughfare is a major north-south
19 arterial connecting Roosevelt Avenue
20 traffic from the Center City to the
21 Greater Northeast and beyond. The
22 problem here has to do more with traffic
23 from Levick Street turning either north
24 or south onto this thoroughfare. In
25 their haste to beat the light, motorists

1 10/3/17 - STREETS - BILL 161105, ETC.
2 frequently make sharp turns onto this
3 Avenue, placing pedestrians crossing
4 Rising Sun Avenue at great risk. One
5 consequence of this phenomenon is that
6 not a week goes by that there is not an
7 automobile accident or a near-miss
8 scenario as noted by the school crossing
9 guard and businesses at the respective
10 four corners of this Rising Sun Avenue
11 and Levick Street intersection.

12 The school crossing guard has
13 reported to me that she frequently
14 experiences reckless driving, imperiling
15 both her physical safety and that of her
16 children despite following the proper
17 school crossing protocols. The most
18 recent incident occurred last Friday,
19 September 29th at 8:15 a.m. when a driver
20 of a pickup truck belligerently
21 approached her while she was crossing
22 Levick Street with a mother and her two
23 small children with the green light. She
24 supported -- she reported that this
25 driver who was in a pickup truck charged

1 10/3/17 - STREETS - BILL 161105, ETC.

2 up to her chest with his truck and after
3 an exchange of words he then commented,
4 Do you want to protect the kids or do you
5 want to protect your life? This incident
6 was reported to the Philadelphia Police.

7 It appears that the motorists
8 feel no inhibitions in these situations
9 despite the presence of the highly
10 visible traffic lights, the presence of a
11 school crossing guard, and signage
12 warning of schoolchildren crossing this
13 busy Rising Sun Avenue and Levick Street
14 intersection. Even the recent retiming
15 of the traffic signal has not dissuaded
16 many motorists from continuing their
17 aggressive behavior.

18 A recent exacerbating factor
19 has been a complete barricading of the
20 northeast corner of the Rising Sun Avenue
21 and Levick Street intersection. It is
22 impossible for pedestrians to walk on the
23 sidewalk, and there's no space to walk in
24 the street without exposure to moving
25 traffic. It is a miracle that no one has

1 10/3/17 - STREETS - BILL 161105, ETC.

2 been hit by a car yet.

3 Still another issue is the
4 illegal parking on Levick Street at this
5 intersection, which at times causes a
6 complete halt to traffic on Levick
7 Street, if the Levick Street traffic is
8 attempting to make a left turn onto
9 Rising Sun Avenue.

10 Adding insult to injury,
11 another west to east outlet for the
12 community on Robbins Street, which is one
13 block south of and runs parallel to
14 Levick Street, was closed by the Naval
15 Supply Depot a number of years ago
16 without any notice to the community. Not
17 even first responders such as fire
18 engines can get through that thoroughfare
19 and, as a result, they must go to Rising
20 Sun Avenue and Levick Street intersection
21 to get to the east side of the Depot.
22 The consequences of a delayed response to
23 a potential fire at the Carnell
24 Elementary School on the other side are
25 too horrific to imagine. The current

1 10/3/17 - STREETS - BILL 161105, ETC.
2 traffic burden and this added first
3 responder traffic load makes the
4 potential for a major accident at the
5 Rising Sun Avenue and Levick
6 intersection, as first responder vehicles
7 meet reckless drivers and defenseless
8 pedestrians, both predictable and
9 unfortunately inevitable.

10 In conclusion, the only logical
11 solution to the problems enumerated is to
12 establish a deterrent which has certain
13 and predictable consequences. Since it
14 is not fiscally possible to station a
15 police car at that Rising Sun Avenue and
16 Levick Street intersection at all of the
17 critical rush hour times, the next most
18 effective approach is to install a red
19 light camera at the intersection in order
20 to identify and monetarily penalize these
21 scofflaws. By passing this ordinance,
22 this dedicated and hardworking body will
23 be sending a loud and clear message to
24 the everyday citizens of this
25 neighborhood of our great City of

1 10/3/17 - STREETS - BILL 161105, ETC.

2 Philadelphia that their safety and
3 well-being is of the City Council's
4 paramount concern.

5 And so I humbly request that
6 you vote in the affirmative in support of
7 Councilwoman Cherelle Parker's bill
8 170718 authorizing the installation of a
9 red light camera at the Rising Sun Avenue
10 and Levick Street intersection in the
11 Lawndale section of the Northeast.

12 Council President Darrell
13 Clarke and Councilmembers, I thank you
14 for your time and the opportunity to
15 speak in support of this most worthy
16 bill. May God bless you all for the
17 vital work which you most selflessly
18 perform as faithful public servants.

19 Most sincerely, Louis A. Brown,
20 Jr., M.D.

21 COUNCILMAN SQUILLA: Ms. Brown,
22 thank you so much for your testimony. I
23 appreciate you taking the time to come
24 here today. That testimony will be noted
25 and I'm sure reflect on the vote of the

Committee on Streets and Services
October 3, 2017

Page 14

1 10/3/17 - STREETS - BILL 161105, ETC.

2 Committee. Thank you.

3 Are there any other questions?

4 (No response.)

5 COUNCILMAN SQUILLA: Seeing

6 none, is there anyone else here to

7 testify on Bill No. 170718?

8 (No response.)

9 COUNCILMAN SQUILLA: Seeing

10 none, thank you very much for your

11 testimony.

12 Mr. McMonagle, please read the

13 title of the next bill.

14 THE CLERK: Bill No. 170596, an

15 ordinance authorizing Michael and Alexis

16 Birnbaum, LLC, ("Owner") to install, own

17 and maintain an exterior metal staircase

18 and planter encroachments at 1714-20

19 South 2nd Street, Philadelphia, PA 19148,

20 under certain terms and conditions.

21 MR. TORRENCE: Good afternoon,

22 Chairman Squilla and members of the

23 Streets and Services Committee. My name

24 is St. Martin Torrence and I'm the

25 Director of Legislative Affairs for the

1 10/3/17 - STREETS - BILL 161105, ETC.

2 Department of Streets. I'm here to offer
3 testimony on Bill No. 170596, as amended.

4 This bill authorizes Michael
5 and Alexis Birnbaum, LLC to install, own
6 and maintain an exterior metal staircase
7 and planter encroachments at 1714 to 20
8 South 2nd Street, under certain terms and
9 conditions.

10 The Streets Department does not
11 support this ordinance. This
12 encroachment sets a precedent for similar
13 encroachments in the area and reduces the
14 walking space below minimum requirements.

15 Thank you for your time. This
16 concludes my testimony.

17 MS. CHIU: Good afternoon,
18 Chairman Squilla and members of Streets
19 and Services Committee. I'm Sarah Chiu,
20 City Planner with the Philadelphia City
21 Planning Commission. I'm here to testify
22 on Bill No. 170596, which was introduced
23 by Councilmember Squilla on June 8th,
24 2017.

25 Bill No. 170596 would permit

1 10/3/17 - STREETS - BILL 161105, ETC.
2 planters and construction of an exterior
3 metal staircase along the side of the
4 building at 1714-20 South 2nd Street.
5 The encroachments for the staircase is 34
6 feet in length and 3 feet 2 inches in
7 width on the south side footway of
8 Watkins Street.

9 The City Planning Commission is
10 scheduled to consider this bill at its
11 meeting on October 17th with a staff
12 recommendation for approval for the
13 planters, but not approval for the
14 exterior staircase for the following
15 reason:

16 Number one, the existing
17 facility at this location is a childcare
18 center on the CMX-2 zoned commercial
19 property. The proposed roof deck on the
20 existing building is not a permitted
21 accessory use for the principle use of
22 the building.

23 Number two, the staircase
24 encroachment would leave insufficient
25 walking zone space for pedestrians. The

1 10/3/17 - STREETS - BILL 161105, ETC.

2 Complete Street Policy recommends a 5
3 foot minimum walking zone on Watkins
4 Street. This proposal would leave only 4
5 feet 6 inches of passable space on the
6 sidewalk.

7 This concludes my testimony. I
8 appreciate the opportunity to testify
9 before you today and would be pleased to
10 answer any questions you may have.

11 COUNCILMAN SQUILLA: Thank you.

12 Does anybody have any
13 questions?

14 (No response.)

15 COUNCILMAN SQUILLA: Seeing
16 none, is there anyone else here to
17 testify on Bill No. 170596, as amended?

18 (No response.)

19 COUNCILMAN SQUILLA: Seeing
20 none, Mr. McMonagle, please read the
21 title of the next bill.

22 THE CLERK: Bill No. 170802, an
23 ordinance authorizing Mark Melini,
24 ("Owner") to install, own and maintain
25 various pedestrian enhancement

1 10/3/17 - STREETS - BILL 161105, ETC.
2 encroachments at 701-39 Market Street,
3 Philadelphia, PA 19106, under certain
4 terms and conditions.

5 MR. TORRENCE: Good morning,
6 Chairman Squilla and members of the
7 Streets and Services Committee. My name
8 is St. Martin Torrence. I'm the Director
9 of Legislative Affairs for the Department
10 of Streets. I'm here to offer testimony
11 on Bill No. 170802.

12 This bill authorizes Mark
13 Melini, ("Owner") to install, own and
14 maintain various pedestrian enhancement
15 encroachments at 701-39 Market Street,
16 under certain terms and conditions.

17 My testimony is submitted, but
18 we are in support of this ordinance.

19 Thank you for your testimony.

20 COUNCILMAN SQUILLA: Thank you,
21 Saint. I think that was very well done,
22 and we do note your testimony for the
23 record.

24 Sarah, are you testifying on
25 this?

1 10/3/17 - STREETS - BILL 161105, ETC.

2 MS. CHIU: No.

3 COUNCILMAN SQUILLA: Anybody
4 else here to testify on Bill No. 1 -- any
5 questions?

6 (No response.)

7 COUNCILMAN SQUILLA: Seeing
8 none, anybody else here to testify on
9 Bill No. 170802?

10 (No response.)

11 COUNCILMAN SQUILLA: Thank you
12 very much.

13 Mr. McMonagle, please read the
14 title of the next bill.

15 THE CLERK: Bill No. 170720, an
16 ordinance authorizing the plotting upon
17 City Plan Nos. 146 and 271 of two
18 rights-of-way for sewer and drainage
19 purposes and the striking from said City
20 Plans and abandoning of all or portions
21 of four other rights-of-way for various
22 utility purposes, all lying within the
23 area southeast of Delaware Avenue and
24 northeast of Ellen Street, and
25 authorizing acceptance of the grant to

1 10/3/17 - STREETS - BILL 161105, ETC.

2 the City of the said rights-of-way being
3 plotted, all under certain terms and
4 conditions.

5 COUNCILMAN SQUILLA: Please
6 proceed.

7 MR. MORELLI: Good afternoon,
8 Mr. Chairman and members of the
9 Committee. My name is Frank Morelli,
10 Survey Bureau Manager of the Department
11 of Streets, and the Department of Streets
12 would like to offer the following
13 testimony on Bill No. 170720.

14 This is not on Administration
15 ordinance, but an ordinance requested by
16 Mr. Terrence McKenna of Keating
17 Consulting LLC on behalf of the
18 SugarHouse Casino.

19 The purpose of this proposed
20 ordinance is to plot on City Plan two new
21 rights-of-way for sewer and drainage
22 purposes and to strike from the City Plan
23 all or portions of four existing utility
24 rights-of-way, all within the property of
25 the SugarHouse Casino, in order to

1 10/3/17 - STREETS - BILL 161105, ETC.
2 provide for the expansion of the casino
3 facilities and for the recently completed
4 construction and reconstruction of two
5 large sewers traversing the casino site.

6 This ordinance is supported by
7 the Department of Streets and is
8 recommended to your Committee for
9 favorable action.

10 MS. CHIU: Good afternoon,
11 Chairman Squilla and members of Streets
12 and Services Committee. I'm Sarah Chiu,
13 City Planner with the Philadelphia City
14 Planning Commission. I'm here to testify
15 on Bill No. 170720, which was introduced
16 by Councilmember Squilla on September
17 14th, 2017.

18 Bill No. 170720 is to allow
19 plotting certain utility right-of-ways
20 for sewer and drainage purposes and
21 striking and abandoning four other
22 utility right-of-ways within the
23 SugarHouse Casino property.

24 This bill is consistent with
25 the SugarHouse Casino's development plan,

1 10/3/17 - STREETS - BILL 161105, ETC.
2 which was approved by the Planning
3 Commission in 2012. Therefore, staff
4 recommendation for this Bill 170720 will
5 be approved.

6 This concludes my testimony. I
7 appreciate the opportunity to testify
8 before you today and would be pleased to
9 answer any questions you may have.

10 COUNCILMAN SQUILLA: Thank you
11 for your testimony.

12 Any questions?

13 (No response.)

14 COUNCILMAN SQUILLA: Seeing
15 none, is there anyone else to testify on
16 Bill No. 170720?

17 (No response.)

18 COUNCILMAN SQUILLA: Seeing
19 none, Mr. McMonagle, please read the
20 title of the next bill.

21 THE CLERK: Bill No. 161105, an
22 ordinance amending Chapter 10-700 of The
23 Philadelphia Code, entitled "Refuse and
24 Littering," by expanding the reward
25 program for the provision of information

1 10/3/17 - STREETS - BILL 161105, ETC.
2 regarding short dumping and revising
3 penalties for refuse and littering
4 violations, under certain terms and
5 conditions.

6 COUNCILMAN SQUILLA: Thank you.
7 Please proceed.

8 MR. ESPOSITO: Good afternoon,
9 Chairman Squilla and members of the
10 Committee. My name is Nic Esposito. I'm
11 the Director of the Zero Waste and Litter
12 Cabinet in the Managing Director's
13 Office. I'm here to offer testimony for
14 Resolution No. 161105 amending Chapter
15 10-700 of The Philadelphia Code, entitled
16 "Refuse and Littering," by further
17 amending Section 10-719, entitled
18 "Penalties," to increase the fines for
19 any person depositing, dumping or causing
20 to be placed any debris on any location
21 without the prior consent of the owner of
22 such location.

23 This amendment ensures that the
24 fines for illegal dumping in this
25 instance are greater than the cost of

1 10/3/17 - STREETS - BILL 161105, ETC.
2 proper disposal for these materials. As
3 was noted in the recently released Zero
4 Waste and Litter Action Plan, the City of
5 Philadelphia incurred the cost of over \$8
6 million in cleaning up illegally dumped
7 materials in our city in 2016. The
8 burden of this cost is also placed on our
9 City services through sanitation workers
10 that need to focus their attention on
11 illegal dumping rather than other city
12 services to serve our residents, as well
13 as the safety and quality of life for the
14 residents in neighborhoods where dumping
15 occurs.

16 The gist of this is if the
17 fines are less than the cost of doing
18 business, we won't make any headway on
19 this issue. These fines of \$300 that
20 have been on the books for decades are
21 not keeping in line with current costs of
22 disposal, and they need to be increased,
23 to the fee structure of 1,000 for the
24 first offense, 1,500 for the second
25 offense, and 2,000 for the third as in

1 10/3/17 - STREETS - BILL 161105, ETC.
2 the amended bill.

3 We also believe in proactive
4 measures to prevent illegal dumping such
5 as better education for contractors of
6 where they can dump, improved access to
7 Sanitation Convenience Centers for
8 residents for the need for bulky
9 materials or appliances, but we also feel
10 that we need to balance this approach
11 with the necessary enforcement tools to
12 hold short dumpers accountable, and we
13 feel that these increased fines satisfy
14 that goal.

15 On behalf of the Zero Waste and
16 Litter Cabinet, we thank Councilman Green
17 for understanding the need for deterring
18 illegal dumping by ensuring the fines are
19 more than the cost of doing proper
20 disposal. And I understand that there
21 will be proposed amendments to this bill,
22 which we also support as a cabinet.

23 I'd be happy to answer any
24 questions, and thank you.

25 COUNCILMAN SQUILLA: Councilman

1 10/3/17 - STREETS - BILL 161105, ETC.

2 Green.

3 COUNCILMAN GREEN: Thank you,
4 Mr. Chair.

5 I wanted to say I'd like to
6 thank the Administration and Mr. Esposito
7 for his work on this legislation as well
8 as the various departments in the City.
9 This was not just work of the Managing
10 Director's Office, but was a
11 collaborative effort of various
12 departments.

13 Short dumping is something
14 that's been an issue in our city for some
15 time, and just increasing the fines alone
16 was not going to be a solution. We have
17 to make sure that if we are going to
18 increase fines, we have the proper
19 enforcement mechanisms available.

20 I know there's been a number of
21 conversations over the past number of
22 months regarding this issue. I just want
23 to thank the Administration for their
24 work in this regard, and hopefully this
25 will allow us to turn the page as we

1 10/3/17 - STREETS - BILL 161105, ETC.
2 focus on zero waste efforts, but also
3 help us to better beautify our city.

4 So thank you.

5 MR. ESPOSITO: Thank you,
6 Councilman Green and your staff.

7 COUNCILMAN SQUILLA: Thank you.

8 Are there any other questions?

9 (No response.)

10 COUNCILMAN SQUILLA: Seeing
11 none, anyone else here to testify on Bill
12 No. 161105, as amended?

13 (No response.)

14 COUNCILMAN SQUILLA: Seeing
15 none, Mr. McMonagle, please read the
16 title of the next bill.

17 THE CLERK: Bill No. 170715, an
18 ordinance amending Chapter 10-700 of The
19 Philadelphia Code, entitled "Refuse and
20 Littering," by further amending Section
21 10-719, entitled "Penalties," to conform
22 with legislation recently enacted by the
23 General Assembly, all under certain terms
24 and conditions.

25 COUNCILMAN SQUILLA: Please

1 10/3/17 - STREETS - BILL 161105, ETC.
2 proceed.

3 MR. ESPOSITO: Good afternoon,
4 Chairman Squilla, members of the
5 Committee. Again, my name is Nic
6 Esposito. I'm the Director of the Zero
7 Waste and Litter Cabinet in the Managing
8 Director's Office. I'm here to offer
9 testimony on Bill No. 170715 amending
10 Chapter 10-700 of The Philadelphia Code,
11 entitled "Refuse and Littering," by
12 further amending Section 10-719, entitled
13 "Penalties," to conform with legislation
14 recently enacted by the Pennsylvania
15 General Assembly.

16 You all know how we feel about
17 short dumpers. I don't have to reiterate
18 that. But that is also why we place high
19 priority on the City's ability to pursue
20 vehicle forfeiture for short dumpers by
21 placing vehicle forfeitures as a
22 short-term priority in our Action Plan's
23 Litter Enforcement Recommendations. We
24 feel that too long illegal dumpers have
25 acted with impunity, and we feel that

1 10/3/17 - STREETS - BILL 161105, ETC.
2 forfeiture of their vehicles for these
3 violations is an adequate deterrent to
4 make these offenders at least consider
5 the severe personal cost of their actions
6 even if they do not consider the
7 community and municipal costs.

8 So on behalf of the Zero Waste
9 and Litter Cabinet, we thank Councilman
10 Henon for understanding the need for
11 enforcing vehicle seizure and forfeiture
12 to deter illegal dumping and for ensuring
13 that our legal mechanisms continue to
14 align with the Pennsylvania state
15 statutes as those statutes are updated.

16 I'd be happy to answer any
17 questions.

18 COUNCILMAN SQUILLA: Thank you.
19 Mr. Esposito, I know we talked in the
20 past and obviously short dumping is
21 always an issue when people believe it's
22 easier just to dump it than take it to a
23 dump. Is it possible, is it a revenue
24 issue or a way to look at our hard hit
25 areas and maybe have surveillance in

1 10/3/17 - STREETS - BILL 161105, ETC.
2 those areas to be able to catch them?
3 Because if we don't catch them, it's hard
4 to confiscate anything. But if we do
5 have good data and good information, it
6 would be easier to go after these guys.
7 Is that something we as a city could do
8 or is that just a resource problem?

9 MR. ESPOSITO: Certainly it was
10 in our recommendations for the Zero Waste
11 and Litter Action Plan for better
12 coordination of that surveillance. So
13 there is a lot of surveillance that goes
14 on within the City of Philadelphia,
15 whether through the Streets Department or
16 through private entities that have
17 cameras that are registered through
18 SafeCam and the Police Department. So we
19 are trying to, one, understand what that
20 landscape looks like so we know where we
21 can look to for information that comes in
22 on lots and then also how to better
23 access and share that information and
24 make sure that it gets back to the police
25 in adequate ways. So the police have

1 10/3/17 - STREETS - BILL 161105, ETC.
2 been very active on the Cabinet as well
3 and kind of keeping those lines of
4 communication open, and seeing where we
5 have the opportunities and capitalizing
6 on them are something that we are
7 actively working on right now.

8 COUNCILMAN SQUILLA: Yeah,
9 because I think it's important, and I
10 know word of mouth, if a couple of these
11 guys get caught and something happens,
12 they will spread the word for us. We
13 won't have to do anything. So I
14 appreciate you testifying on this, and
15 Councilman Henon's bill is so important.

16 Are there any other questions?

17 (No response.)

18 COUNCILMAN SQUILLA: Is there
19 anybody else here to testify on Bill No.
20 170715?

21 (No response.)

22 COUNCILMAN SQUILLA: Seeing
23 none, thank you, Nic, for your testimony.

24 Mr. McMonagle, can you please
25 read the title of the next bill.

1 10/3/17 - STREETS - BILL 161105, ETC.

2 THE CLERK: Bill No. 170722, an
3 ordinance amending Section 9-204 of The
4 Philadelphia Code, entitled "Sidewalk
5 Vendors in Center City," by eliminating
6 previously designated vendor locations in
7 Center City; all under certain terms and
8 conditions.

9 And testimony was submitted by
10 Rebecca Swanson, who could not attend
11 today.

12 COUNCILMAN SQUILLA: Thank you.
13 And we do note the testimony, written
14 testimony, submitted for the record.

15 Are there any questions on
16 this?

17 (No response.)

18 COUNCILMAN SQUILLA: Seeing
19 none, is there anybody else here to
20 testify on Bill No. 170722?

21 (No response.)

22 COUNCILMAN SQUILLA: Seeing
23 none. Nobody is here. I guess that's
24 pretty good.

25 Thank you all. That will end

Committee on Streets and Services
October 3, 2017

Page 33

1 10/3/17 - STREETS - BILL 161105, ETC.

2 our hearing. We will now go into a
3 public meeting.

4 Councilman Greenlee.

5 COUNCILMAN GREENLEE: Thank
6 you, Mr. Chairman. I move the adoption
7 of the amendments to Bill No. 170596 and
8 161105.

9 (Duly seconded.)

10 COUNCILMAN SQUILLA: Amendments
11 have been proposed and seconded.

12 All in favor?

13 (Aye.)

14 COUNCILMAN SQUILLA: Any
15 opposed?

16 (No response.)

17 COUNCILMAN SQUILLA: The ayes
18 have it. Amendments to Bill No. 170596
19 and 161105 have been approved.

20 Councilman Greenlee.

21 COUNCILMAN GREENLEE: Thank
22 you, Mr. Chairman. I move that the
23 following bills be reported out of this
24 Committee with a favorable recommendation
25 and that the rules of Council be

Committee on Streets and Services
October 3, 2017

Page 34

1 10/3/17 - STREETS - BILL 161105, ETC.
2 suspended to allow for first reading at
3 our next session of Council: Nos.
4 170718, 170596 as amended, 170802,
5 170720, 161105 as amended, 170715, and
6 170722.

7 (Duly seconded.)

8 COUNCILMAN SQUILLA: Bills have
9 been read into the record are properly
10 seconded.

11 All in favor?

12 (Aye.)

13 COUNCILMAN SQUILLA: Any
14 opposed?

15 (No response.)

16 COUNCILMAN SQUILLA: The ayes
17 have it. All bills read into the record
18 have been approved with suspension of the
19 rules to be read at the next Council
20 session.

21 Thank you very much.

22 (Committee on Streets and
23 Services concluded at 3:55 p.m.)

24 - - -

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

CERTIFICATE

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the
proceedings, evidence and objections are
contained fully and accurately in the
stenographic notes taken by me upon the
foregoing matter, and that this is a true and
correct transcript of same.

MICHELE L. MURPHY
RPR-Notary Public

(The foregoing certification of this
transcript does not apply to any reproduction
of the same by any means, unless under the
direct control and/or supervision of the
certifying reporter.)

Committee on Streets and Services
October 3, 2017

Page 1

A	align 29:14	8:19	behavior	6:11 7:7	12:12 14:20	26:8,14	concludes 4:5
a.m 9:19	allow 21:18	asked 4:20	10:17	breaking 6:2	15:8 18:3	27:3 30:7	15:16 17:7
abandoning	26:25 34:2	Assembly	believe 25:3	Bridge 8:5	18:16 20:3	30:14 32:5	22:6
19:20 21:21	allowing 5:7	27:23 28:15	29:21	Brown 4:8,12	21:19 23:4	32:7	conclusion
ability 28:19	Alternative	assistance	belligerently	4:13,14 5:5	27:23 32:7	City's 28:19	12:10
able 5:13	6:17	5:12	9:20	5:8 13:19	Certainly	Clarke 5:7	conditions
30:2	amended	attempting	better 25:5	13:21	30:9	13:13	3:2 14:20
acceptance	15:3 17:17	11:8	27:3 30:11	building 16:4	CERTIFIC...	cleaning 24:6	15:9 18:4
19:25	25:2 27:12	attend 32:10	30:22	16:20,22	35:2	clear 12:23	18:16 20:4
access 25:6	34:4,5	attention	beyond 4:19	bulky 25:8	certification	CLERK 2:18	23:5 27:24
30:23	amending	24:10	8:21	burden 12:2	35:20	14:14 17:22	32:8
accessory	2:19 22:22	August 6:20	bill 2:1,13,17	24:8	CERTIFY	19:15 22:21	confiscate
16:21	23:14,17	authorizes	2:18 3:1,16	Bureau 20:10	35:3	27:17 32:2	30:4
accident 6:16	27:18,20	3:17 15:4	3:17,21 4:1	business 6:10	certifying	clinic 7:16	conflict 4:19
6:25 9:7	28:9,12	18:12	4:21 5:1,9	7:4,7,18	35:24	closed 11:14	conform
12:4	32:3	authorizing	6:1 7:1 8:1	24:18	Chair 1:10	closer 4:11	27:21 28:13
accountable	amendment	2:23 13:8	9:1 10:1	businesses	26:4	CMX-2 16:18	connecting
25:12	23:23	14:15 17:23	11:1 12:1	9:9	Chairman	Code 2:20	8:19
accurately	amendments	19:16,25	13:1,7,16	busy 10:13	3:10 14:22	22:23 23:15	connector 8:2
35:5	25:21 33:7	Automated	14:1,7,13		15:18 18:6	27:19 28:10	consent 23:21
acted 28:25	33:10,18	2:21	14:14 15:1	C	20:8 21:11	32:4	consequence
action 21:9	America 7:15	automobile	15:3,4,22	cabinet 23:12	23:9 28:4	collaborative	9:5
24:4 28:22	and/or 35:23	9:7	15:25 16:1	25:16,22	33:6,22	26:11	consequences
30:11	answer 17:10	available	16:10 17:1	28:7 29:9	Chapter 2:19	come 13:23	6:24 11:22
actions 29:5	22:9 25:23	26:19	17:17,21,22	31:2	22:22 23:14	comes 30:21	12:13
active 31:2	29:16	Avenue 2:25	18:1,11,12	call 2:4,14	27:18 28:10	commented	consider
actively 31:7	anybody	3:20 4:16	19:1,4,9,14	callous 6:21	charged 9:25	10:3	16:10 29:4
added 12:2	17:12 19:3	4:25 5:17	19:15 20:1	camera 4:24	Cheltenham	commercial	29:6
Adding 11:10	19:8 31:19	5:20,24 6:4	20:13 21:1	5:16 7:3	8:5	16:18	consistent
addition 7:18	32:19	6:11 7:8	21:15,18,24	12:19 13:9	Cherelle 4:22	Commission	21:24
adequate	appear 3:12	8:15,19 9:3	22:1,4,16	cameras	5:12 13:7	15:21 16:9	construction
29:3 30:25	4:4	9:4,10	22:20,21	30:17	chest 10:2	21:14 22:3	16:2 21:4
Administra...	appears 10:7	10:13,20	23:1 24:1	capitalizing	Chicheara	Committee	Consulting
20:14 26:6	appliances	11:9,20	25:1,2,21	31:5	7:19	1:3 3:11	20:17
26:23	25:9	12:5,15	26:1 27:1	car 6:20 11:2	child 6:18	14:2,23	contained
adoption 33:6	apply 35:21	13:9 19:23	27:11,16,17	12:15	childcare	15:19 18:7	35:5
Affairs 3:14	appreciate	Aye 33:13	28:1,9 29:1	Care 6:17	16:17	20:9 21:8	continue
14:25 18:9	13:23 17:8	34:12	30:1 31:1	Carnell 11:23	children 9:16	21:12 23:10	29:13
affirmative	22:7 31:14	ayes 33:17	31:15,19,25	cases 5:22	9:23	28:5 33:24	continuing
13:6	approach	34:16	32:1,2,20	casino 20:18	Chiu 15:17	34:22	10:16
afternoon 2:3	12:18 25:10		33:1,7,18	20:25 21:2	15:19 19:2	communica...	contractors
3:8,10	approached	B	34:1	21:5,23	21:10,12	31:4	25:5
14:21 15:17	3:3 9:21	back 30:24	bills 1:14	Casino's	CINDY 1:10	community	control 4:19
20:7 21:10	approval	balance 25:10	33:23 34:8	21:25	citizens 12:24	11:12,16	35:23
23:8 28:3	16:12,13	Bank 7:14	34:17	catch 30:2,3	city 1:2,6	29:7	Convenience
afternoons	approved	barricading	Birnbaum	caught 31:11	3:25 5:6	complete	25:7
8:7	22:2,5	10:19	14:16 15:5	causes 11:5	8:20 12:25	10:19 11:6	conversations
aggressive	33:19 34:18	Bass 1:10	bless 13:16	causing 23:19	13:3 15:20	17:2	26:21
10:17	area 15:13	2:10	block 11:13	ceased 6:5	15:20 16:9	completed	coordination
ago 11:15	19:23	beat 8:13,25	bodily 6:8	center 6:18	19:17,19	21:3	30:12
Alexis 14:15	areas 29:25	beautify 27:3	body 12:22	8:20 16:18	20:2,20,22	concern 13:4	corner 10:20
15:5	30:2	behalf 4:20	books 24:20	32:5,7	21:13,13	concluded	corners 9:10
Ali 3:9	arterial 8:2	20:17 25:15	bracketing	Centers 25:7	24:4,7,9,11	34:23	correct 35:8
		29:8		certain 3:2			

Committee on Streets and Services
October 3, 2017

Page 2

cost 23:25 24:5,8,17 25:19 29:5 costs 24:21 29:7 Council 1:2 5:6 13:12 33:25 34:3 34:19 Council's 13:3 Councilman 1:10,11,11 1:12 2:2,8,9 3:5 4:6 5:3 13:21 14:5 14:9 17:11 17:15,19 18:20 19:3 19:7,11 20:5 22:10 22:14,18 23:6 25:16 25:25,25 26:3 27:6,7 27:10,14,25 29:9,18 31:8,15,18 31:22 32:12 32:18,22 33:4,5,10 33:14,17,20 33:21 34:8 34:13,16 Councilme... 15:23 21:16 Councilme... 13:13 Councilwo... 1:10 2:10 4:22 5:11 13:7 County 8:3,6 couple 31:10 crashes 3:24 critical 12:17 cross 6:5 crossing 5:20 8:11 9:3,8 9:12,17,21 10:11,12 current 11:25 24:21	D Darrell 5:7 13:12 data 30:5 daughter 4:13 5:7 DAVID 1:12 Day 6:17 days 7:22 debris 23:20 decades 24:20 deck 16:19 dedicated 5:10 12:22 defenseless 12:7 Delaware 19:23 delay 2:3 delayed 11:22 Department 3:15,20 15:2,10 18:9 20:10 20:11 21:7 30:15,18 departments 26:8,12 depositing 23:19 Depot 11:15 11:21 DEREK 1:11 dermatology 4:15 designed 32:6 despite 9:16 10:9 destinations 8:14 deter 29:12 deterrent 12:12 29:3 detering 25:17 development 21:25 devices 3:23 4:2 different 8:17 direct 35:23	Director 3:14 14:25 18:8 23:11 28:6 Director's 23:12 26:10 28:8 discussing 6:9 disposal 24:2 24:22 25:20 dissuaded 10:15 distant 8:13 District 5:11 doing 24:17 25:19 drainage 19:18 20:21 21:20 driver 6:20 9:19,25 drivers 12:7 driving 6:19 9:14 drove 6:22 Due 4:18 Duly 33:9 34:7 dump 25:6 29:22,23 dumped 24:6 dumpers 25:12 28:17 28:20,24 dumping 23:2,19,24 24:11,14 25:4,18 26:13 29:12 29:20 E easier 29:22 30:6 east 11:11,21 east-west 7:25 eastbound 5:23 education 25:5 effective 12:18 effort 26:11	efforts 27:2 either 8:23 Elementary 11:24 eliminating 32:5 Ellen 19:24 enacted 27:22 28:14 encounter 6:5 encounters 6:14 encroachm... 15:12 16:24 encroachm... 14:18 15:7 15:13 16:5 18:2,15 enforcement 2:21,24 3:18 25:11 26:19 28:23 enforcing 29:11 engines 11:18 enhancement 17:25 18:14 ensures 23:23 ensuring 25:18 29:12 enthusiastic... 7:9,21 entities 30:16 entitled 2:20 22:23 23:15 23:17 27:19 27:21 28:11 28:12 32:4 enumerated 12:11 Esposito 23:8 23:10 26:6 27:5 28:3,6 29:19 30:9 establish 12:12 estate 7:17 evenings 8:7 everybody 2:4 everyday 12:24 evidence 35:4	exacerbating 10:18 exception 6:15 exchange 10:3 existing 16:16 16:20 20:23 expanding 22:24 expansion 21:2 experienced 5:19 experiences 6:10 9:14 experiencing 6:13 exposure 10:24 exterior 14:17 15:6 16:2,14 F facilities 21:3 facility 16:17 fact 6:14 7:5 factor 10:18 faithful 13:18 father 4:19 favor 33:12 34:11 favorable 21:9 33:24 fear 6:7 fee 24:23 feel 10:8 25:9 25:13 28:16 28:24,25 feet 16:6,6 17:5 fines 23:18,24 24:17,19 25:13,18 26:15,18 fire 11:17,23 first 2:17 11:17 12:2 12:6 24:24 34:2 fiscally 12:14 flow 8:16 focus 24:10	27:2 following 9:16 16:14 20:12 33:23 foot 17:3 footway 16:7 foregoing 35:7,20 forfeiture 28:20 29:2 29:11 forfeitures 28:21 found 6:12 four 9:10 19:21 20:23 21:21 Frank 20:9 frequently 9:2,13 Friday 9:18 fully 35:5 further 23:16 27:20 28:12 G General 27:23 28:15 gist 24:16 go 11:19 30:6 33:2 goal 25:14 God 13:16 goes 9:6 30:13 going 26:16 26:17 good 2:2 3:8 3:10 14:21 15:17 18:5 20:7 21:10 23:8 28:3 30:5,5 32:24 grant 19:25 great 9:4 12:25 greater 8:21 23:25 green 1:11 2:9 9:23 25:16 26:2 26:3 27:6 Greenlee 1:11	2:9 33:4,5 33:20,21 grievous 6:8 guard 9:9,12 10:11 guess 32:23 guys 30:6 31:11 H Hall 1:6 halt 11:6 happens 31:11 happy 25:23 29:16 hard 29:24 30:3 hardworking 12:22 harm 6:8 harrowing 6:15 haste 8:25 heading 5:24 headway 24:18 hearing 2:5 33:2 heavy 8:9 help 27:3 Henon 29:10 Henon's 31:15 high 28:18 highly 10:9 hit 6:20 11:2 29:24 hold 2:14 25:12 holiday 8:8 Home 7:14 hopefully 26:24 horrific 11:25 Hospital 7:15 7:16 hour 12:17 hours 8:6 humbly 13:5 I identify 12:20 illegal 11:4	23:24 24:11 25:4,18 28:24 29:12 illegally 24:6 imagine 11:25 imperiling 9:14 important 31:9,15 impossible 10:22 improved 25:6 impunity 28:25 inches 16:6 17:5 incident 6:7 9:18 10:5 included 7:11 including 5:13 Incorporated 6:17 increase 23:18 26:18 increased 24:22 25:13 increasing 26:15 incurred 24:5 inevitable 12:9 information 22:25 30:5 30:21,23 inhibitions 10:8 initiative 3:23 injury 11:10 install 12:18 14:16 15:5 17:24 18:13 installation 2:23 3:18 5:16 13:8 installed 4:2 instance 23:25 institutions 7:13 insufficient
--	---	---	--	---	---	--	---

Committee on Streets and Services
October 3, 2017

Page 3

16:24 insult 11:10 interest 3:21 intersection 2:24 3:19 4:24 5:16 5:21 6:6,12 7:5,9 8:12 9:11 10:14 10:21 11:5 11:20 12:6 12:16,19 13:10 introduced 4:21 5:10 15:22 21:15 involved 6:18 issue 11:3 24:19 26:14 26:22 29:21 29:24 J Jersey 8:3 Jr 4:14 13:20 June 15:23 K K 1:11 Kasim 3:9 Keating 20:16 keeping 24:21 31:3 kids 10:4 kind 5:13 31:3 Kindred 7:15 know 26:20 28:16 29:19 30:20 31:10 Kyasha 5:14 L L 35:14 landscape 30:20 large 21:5 Lauren 4:12 5:8 Lawndale 4:15 13:11 lays 7:23 leave 16:24	17:4 left 2:8 5:22 11:8 legal 29:13 legislation 26:7 27:22 28:13 Legislative 3:14 14:25 18:9 length 16:6 Levick 2:25 3:20 4:25 5:17,23 6:12,19 7:8 7:25 8:23 9:11,22 10:13,21 11:4,6,7,14 11:20 12:5 12:16 13:10 life 10:5 24:13 light 2:21,22 2:23 3:18 3:24 4:24 5:15,21 7:2 8:13,25 9:23 12:19 13:9 lights 10:10 line 24:21 lines 31:3 Litter 23:11 24:4 25:16 28:7,23 29:9 30:11 littering 22:24 23:3 23:16 27:20 28:11 little 8:9 LLC 14:16 15:5 20:17 load 12:3 local 8:10 location 16:17 23:20 23:22 locations 3:25 32:6 logical 12:10 long 28:24	look 29:24 30:21 looks 30:20 lot 30:13 lots 30:22 loud 12:23 Louis 4:13 13:19 lower 3:24 8:4 lying 19:22 M M.D 4:14 13:20 maintain 14:17 15:6 17:24 18:14 major 7:13 7:25 8:18 12:4 making 5:22 managed 7:20 Manager 20:10 Managing 23:12 26:9 28:7 Marie 4:13 5:8 Mark 1:10 17:23 18:12 Market 18:2 18:15 Martin 3:13 14:24 18:8 materials 24:2,7 25:9 matter 35:7 Mayor's 3:22 McKenna 20:16 McMonagle 2:11,16 14:12 17:20 19:13 22:19 27:15 31:24 Meadows 5:14 means 35:22 measure 7:10 measures 25:4	mechanisms 26:19 29:13 meet 12:7 meeting 16:11 33:3 Melini 17:23 18:13 members 3:11 14:22 15:18 18:6 20:8 21:11 23:9 28:4 message 12:23 metal 14:17 15:6 16:3 Michael 14:15 15:4 MICHELE 35:14 microphone 4:11 million 24:6 minimum 15:14 17:3 miracle 10:25 misses 5:19 monetary 12:20 Montgomery 8:3,6 months 26:22 Morelli 20:7 20:9 morning 18:5 mornings 8:7 mother 6:18 6:23 9:22 motorist 5:22 motorists 8:9 8:12,25 10:7,16 mouth 31:10 move 33:6,22 moving 10:24 multifaceted 5:18 municipal 29:7 MURPHY 35:14 N name 3:13	4:9,12 14:23 18:7 20:9 23:10 28:5 nature 7:23 Naval 11:14 near 5:19 6:9 near-miss 9:7 nearby 7:20 necessary 25:11 need 24:10,22 25:8,10,17 29:10 neighborho... 4:15 7:16 8:10 12:25 neighborho... 24:14 new 8:2 20:20 Nic 23:10 28:5 31:23 nine 7:6 Ninth 5:11 norm 6:14 north 5:25 6:3 8:23 north-south 8:18 northeast 4:17 8:4,21 10:20 13:11 19:24 Nos 19:17 34:3 note 18:22 32:13 noted 9:8 13:24 24:3 notes 35:6 notice 11:16 number 11:15 16:16 16:23 26:20 26:21 O objections 35:4 obviously 3:9 29:20 occurred 9:18 occurs 24:15 October 1:7	16:11 offenders 29:4 offense 24:24 24:25 offer 3:16 15:2 18:10 20:12 23:13 28:8 Office 23:13 26:10 28:8 oh 1:12 2:12 open 31:4 opportunities 31:5 opportunity 3:12 4:3 13:14 17:8 22:7 opposed 33:15 34:14 order 2:5 12:19 20:25 ordinance 2:19 12:21 14:15 15:11 17:23 18:18 19:16 20:15 20:15,20 21:6 22:22 27:18 32:3 outcome 6:8 outlet 11:11 owner 6:16 14:16 17:24 18:13 23:21 owners 6:10 7:4,7,18 P p.m 1:7 34:23 PA 14:19 18:3 page 26:25 parallel 11:13 paramount 13:4 Parker 4:22 5:12 Parker's 13:7 parking 11:4 passable 17:5 passing 12:21 Pat 7:19	pedestrian 17:25 18:14 pedestrians 7:21 8:11 9:3 10:22 12:8 16:25 penalize 12:20 penalties 23:3 23:18 27:21 28:13 Pennsylvania 1:6 28:14 29:14 people 29:21 perform 13:18 period 6:6 permit 15:25 permitted 16:20 perpetrator 6:22 person 23:19 personal 29:5 personally 5:18 petition 7:6 7:22 phenomenon 9:5 Philadelphia 1:2,6 2:20 4:17 5:6 7:14 10:6 13:2 14:19 15:20 18:3 21:13 22:23 23:15 24:5 27:19 28:10 30:14 32:4 physical 6:2 9:15 pickup 9:20 9:25 place 28:18 placed 23:20 24:8 placement 4:23 placing 9:3 28:21 plan 19:17	20:20,22 21:25 24:4 30:11 Plan's 28:22 Planner 15:20 21:13 Planning 15:21 16:9 21:14 22:2 Plans 19:20 planter 14:18 15:7 planters 16:2 16:13 please 2:16 5:3 14:12 17:20 19:13 20:5 22:19 23:7 27:15 27:25 31:24 pleased 17:9 22:8 plot 20:20 plotted 20:3 plotting 19:16 21:19 police 10:6 12:15 30:18 30:24,25 Policy 17:2 portions 19:20 20:23 possible 12:14 29:23 potential 11:23 12:4 practiced 4:14 precedent 15:12 predictable 12:8,13 presence 5:25 10:9,10 PRESENT 1:9 President 5:6 13:12 pretty 32:24 prevent 2:22 25:4 previously 32:6
--	---	---	--	---	--	--	--

Committee on Streets and Services
October 3, 2017

Page 4

principle 16:21	questions 4:7 14:3 17:10	26:22	31:7	9:17 10:11	showed 5:25	27:10,14,25	22:1 23:1
prior 23:21	17:13 19:5	registered 30:17	right-of-ways 21:19,22	11:24	shown 3:24	28:4 29:18	24:1 25:1
priority 28:19,22	22:9,12	reiterate 28:17	rights-of-way 19:18,21	10:12	side 11:21,24	31:8,18,22	26:1 27:1
private 30:16	25:24 27:8	related 6:16	20:2,21,24	scofflaws 12:21	16:3,7	32:12,18,22	28:1 29:1
proactive 25:3	29:17 31:16	released 24:3	Rising 2:25	second 6:4	sidewalk 10:23 17:6	33:10,14,17	30:1,15
problem 7:23	32:15	remarkable 7:6	3:19 4:16	24:24	32:4	34:8,13,16	31:1 32:1
8:16,22	quorum 2:8	reported 9:13	4:25 5:17	seconded 33:9,11	sign 7:21	St 3:13 14:24	33:1 34:1
30:8	R	9:24 10:6	5:20,24 6:3	34:7,10	signage 10:11	18:8	34:22
problematic 8:16	Rachel 5:13	33:23	6:11 7:8	section 4:17	signal 10:15	staff 5:13	strike 20:22
problems 12:11	read 2:12,16	reporter 35:24	8:15 9:4,10	13:11 23:17	signatories 7:11	16:11 22:3	striking 19:19 21:21
proceed 5:4	17:20 19:13	reproduction 35:21	10:13,20	27:20 28:12	signed 7:9	27:6	structure 24:23
20:6 23:7	22:19 27:15	request 13:5	11:9,19	32:3	similar 6:4,7	14:17 15:6	submitted 7:5
28:2	31:25 34:9	requested 20:15	12:5,15	seeing 14:5,9	15:12	16:3,5,14	18:17 32:9
proceedings 35:4	34:17,19	requirements 15:14	13:9	17:15,19	sincerely 13:19	16:23	32:14
professionals 7:12	reading 34:2	resident 7:19	risk 9:4	19:7 22:14	site 21:5	start 2:7,12	suffering 6:24
program 22:25	real 7:17	residents 7:20 24:12	road 8:2	22:18 27:10	situations 10:8	3:6 4:9	SugarHouse 20:18,25
proper 9:16	reason 8:17	24:14 25:8	Robbins 11:12	27:14 31:4	small 9:23	29:14	21:23,25
24:2 25:19	Rebecca 32:10	Resolution 23:14	roof 16:19	31:22 32:18	solution 12:11 26:16	statement 5:2	Sun 2:25 3:19
26:18	reckless 9:14	23:14	Room 1:6	32:22	Sorry 2:3	station 12:14	4:16,25
properly 34:9	12:7	resource 30:8	Roosevelt 8:19	seizure 29:11	south 8:24	statutes 29:15,15	5:17,20,24
property 16:19 20:24	recommend... 16:12 22:4	respective 9:9	RPR-Notary 35:15	selflessly 13:17	11:13 14:19	stenographic 35:6	6:3,11 7:8
21:23	33:24	responder 12:3,6	rules 33:25	sending 12:23	15:8 16:4,7	stopping 6:22	8:15 9:4,10
proposal 17:4	recommend... 28:23 30:10	responders 11:17	34:19	September 4:22 9:19	southeast 19:23	street 2:25	10:13,20
proposed 16:19 20:19	21:8	response 11:22 14:4	running 3:24	21:16	space 10:23	3:20 4:25	11:9,20
25:21 33:11	recommends 17:2	14:8 17:14	runs 11:13	servants 13:18	15:14 16:25	5:17,23	12:5,15
protect 10:4,5	reconstruct... 21:4	17:18 19:6	rush 8:6	serve 24:12	17:5	6:12,19 7:8	13:9
Protestant 7:14	18:23 32:14	19:10 22:13	12:17	services 1:3	speak 4:10	7:25 8:23	supervision 35:23
protocols 9:17	34:9,17	22:17 27:9	S	2:6 14:23	13:15	9:11,22	Supply 11:15
provide 21:2	red 2:21,22	27:13 31:17	S 1:11	15:19 18:7	sped 6:3	10:13,21,24	support 4:21
provision 22:25	record 2:13	31:21 32:17	SafeCam 30:18	21:12 24:9	speed 6:3	11:4,7,7,12	5:9,15 7:2
public 13:18	4:9 5:9	32:21 33:16	safety 3:22	24:12 34:23	speeding 6:20	11:14,20	7:10 13:6
33:3 35:15	18:23 32:14	34:15	6:2 9:15	session 34:3	spinning 6:21	12:16 13:10	13:15 15:11
purpose 20:19	34:9,17	restaurant 7:17	13:2 24:13	34:20	sponsors 2:15	14:19 15:8	18:18 25:22
purposes 19:19,22	reduces 15:13	result 11:19	Saint 3:6	sets 15:12	spread 31:12	16:4,8 17:2	supported 9:24 21:6
20:22 21:20	reflect 13:25	retiming 10:14	18:21	severe 29:5	Squilla 1:10	17:4 18:2	supports 3:21
pursue 28:19	refuse 22:23	revenue 29:23	salon 7:17	sewer 19:18	2:2 3:5 4:6	18:15 19:24	sure 13:25
Q	23:3,16	revising 23:2	sanitation 24:9 25:7	20:21 21:20	5:3 13:21	Streets 1:3	26:17 30:24
quality 24:13	27:19 28:11	reward 22:24	Sarah 15:19	sewers 21:5	14:5,9,22	2:1,5 3:1,15	surveillance 29:25 30:12
	regard 5:25	right 2:10	18:24 21:12	share 30:23	15:18,23	4:1 5:1 6:1	30:13
	8:10 26:24		satisfy 25:13	sharp 9:2	17:11,15,19	7:1 8:1 9:1	Survey 20:10
	regarding 4:23 23:2		scenario 9:8	short 23:2	18:6,20	10:1 11:1	suspended 34:2
			scheduled 16:10	25:12 26:13	19:3,7,11	12:1 13:1	suspension 34:18
			scheduling 4:18	28:17,20	20:5 21:11	14:1,23	Swanson 32:10
			school 9:8,12	29:20	21:16 22:10	15:1,2,10	system 2:21
				short-term 28:22	22:14,18	17:1 18:1,7	
				show 8:9	23:6,9	18:10 19:1	
					25:25 27:7	20:1,11,11	
						21:1,7,11	

Committee on Streets and Services
October 3, 2017

Page 5

3:19 systems 2:24	27:4,5,7 29:9,18 31:23 32:12 32:25 33:5 33:21 34:21	26:25 turning 5:24 8:23 turns 5:22 9:2 two 5:19 7:22 7:24 9:22 16:23 19:17 20:20 21:4 Tyson 5:14	17:3 want 10:4,5 26:22 wanted 26:5 warning 10:12 waste 23:11 24:4 25:15 27:2 28:7 29:8 30:10 Watkins 16:8 17:3 way 29:24 ways 30:25 week 9:6 weekends 8:8 welcome 2:4 well-being 13:3 west 11:11 width 16:7 WILLIAM 1:11 witness 3:3 Witnesses 3:3 word 31:10 31:12 words 10:3 work 13:17 26:7,9,24 workers 24:9 working 31:7 worse 6:8 worthy 13:15 written 32:13	1 1 19:4 1,000 24:23 1,500 24:24 10-700 22:22 23:15 27:18 28:10 10-719 23:17 27:21 28:12 10/3/17 2:1 3:1 4:1 5:1 6:1 7:1 8:1 9:1 10:1 11:1 12:1 13:1 14:1 15:1 16:1 17:1 18:1 19:1 20:1 21:1 22:1 23:1 24:1 25:1 26:1 27:1 28:1 29:1 30:1 31:1 32:1 33:1 34:1 12-3000 2:19 146 19:17 14th 4:23 21:17 161105 1:14 2:1 3:1 4:1 5:1 6:1 7:1 8:1 9:1 10:1 11:1 12:1 13:1 14:1 15:1 16:1 17:1 18:1 19:1 20:1 21:1 22:1 22:21 23:1 23:14 24:1 25:1 26:1 27:1,12 28:1 29:1 30:1 31:1 32:1 33:1,8 33:19 34:1 34:5 170596 1:14 14:14 15:3 15:22,25 17:17 33:7 33:18 34:4	170624 1:14 2:14 170715 1:14 27:17 28:9 31:20 34:5 170718 1:14 2:18 3:16 4:21 5:10 13:8 14:7 34:4 170720 1:15 19:15 20:13 21:15,18 22:4,16 34:5 170722 1:15 32:2,20 34:6 170802 1:15 17:22 18:11 19:9 34:4 170804 1:15 2:14 1714 15:7 1714-20 14:18 16:4 17th 16:11 19106 18:3 19148 14:19	45 6:10 7:11 7:20 5 5 17:2 6 6 17:5 6326 4:16 7 701-39 18:2 18:15 8 8 24:5 8:15 9:19 8th 15:23 9 9-204 32:3
T table 3:4 Tacony-Pal... 8:5 take 29:22 taken 35:6 talked 29:19 technology 7:18 Temple 7:15 ten 7:7 terms 3:2 14:20 15:8 18:4,16 20:3 23:4 27:23 32:7 Terrence 20:16 terrifying 5:19 testify 4:20 14:7 15:21 17:8,17 19:4,8 21:14 22:7 22:15 27:11 31:19 32:20 testifying 18:24 31:14 testimony 3:7 3:16 4:5,10 5:9 6:23 13:22,24 14:11 15:3 15:16 17:7 18:10,17,19 18:22 20:13 22:6,11 23:13 28:9 31:23 32:9 32:13,14 thank 3:5,11 4:3,6,11 5:5 13:13,22 14:2,10 15:15 17:11 18:19,20 19:11 22:10 23:6 25:16 25:24 26:3 26:6,23	think 18:21 31:9 third 24:25 thoroughfare 8:18,24 11:18 thoroughfa... 7:24 three-year 6:6 time 7:20 13:14,23 15:15 26:15 times 11:5 12:17 tireless 5:11 title 2:12,17 14:13 17:21 19:14 22:20 27:16 31:25 today 3:13 4:4 13:24 17:9 22:8 32:11 today's 6:23 tools 25:11 Torrence 3:8 3:13 14:21 14:24 18:5 18:8 traffic 3:22 5:23 8:8,15 8:20,22 10:10,15,25 11:6,7 12:2 12:3 transcript 35:8,21 traverses 8:4 traversing 21:5 truck 9:20,25 10:2 true 35:7 try 8:12 trying 30:19 Tuesday 1:7 turn 11:8	U unanimous 7:3 understand 25:20 30:19 understand... 25:17 29:10 unfortunat... 12:9 unique 7:24 University 7:16 updated 29:15 use 2:20 16:21,21 utility 19:22 20:23 21:19 21:22 V various 17:25 18:14 19:21 26:8,11 vehicle 28:20 28:21 29:11 vehicles 12:6 29:2 vendor 32:6 Vendors 32:5 vicinity 7:4 violations 2:22 23:4 29:3 visible 10:10 Vision 3:22 vital 13:17 vote 13:6,25 W walk 10:22,23 walking 15:14 16:25	X Y Yeah 31:8 years 4:18 11:15 Z zero 3:23 23:11 24:3 25:15 27:2 28:6 29:8 30:10 zone 16:25 17:3 zoned 16:18 0			
					2 2 16:6 2,000 24:25 20 15:7 2012 22:3 2016 24:7 2017 1:7 4:23 15:24 21:17 271 19:17 29th 9:19 2nd 14:19 15:8 16:4 3 3 1:7 16:6 3:30 1:7 3:55 34:23 30 4:18 300 24:19 34 16:5 4 4 17:4 400 1:6	